
Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting 

Thursday, February 2, 2017 
Knight Administrative Centre 

1736 W. Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32310 
Agenda 

1. Call to Order

2. Introduction of Guests

3. Modifications to Agenda

4. Public Comment

5. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes, Board of Governors, December 1, 2016 (Attachment A)

6. Consent Agenda
a. Treasurer’s Report

i. Report November/December (Attachment B)
ii. Monthly Financial Report, November 2016 (link)
iii. Monthly Financial Report, December 2016 (link)

b. Investments
i. Report, November 2016 (Attachment C1)

ii. Report, December 2016 (Attachment C2)
iii. Investment Policy Change (Attachments C3, C4)

Staff requests approval of changes to the Investment Policy to eliminate language duplication
with the Investment Advisory Committee Charter and incorporate the Charter into the Policy
by reference.

c. Jump Start Committee
i. Report, December 15, 2016 (Attachment D1)

ii. Report, January 17, 2017 (Attachment D2)

7. Jump Start
a. Status Update—Kristin Dozier, Immediate Past Chair & Jump Start Committee Chair
b. Architectural & Engineering Study Agreement (Attachment E)—Ron Miller, Executive Director

Staff requests approval of an agreement with Lewis + Whitlock to conduct an architectural and
engineering study of the Collins Building for use as the JumpStart Incubator at a lump sum fee of
$23,140.

8. Chair’s Report—Anne Longman, Chair
a. Meetings held with County and City Commissioners
b. Other

9. Entrepreneurial Excellence Program (EEP)
a. Presentation—Larry Lynch, EEP Director
b. State of Florida, Legislative Funding Budget Request (Attachment F)—Ron Miller, Executive

Director

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 1 of 146

http://lcrda.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/1116-Monthly-Report-Innovation-Park.pdf
http://lcrda.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/1216-Monthly-Report-Innovation-Park.pdf


 

 

Staff requests approval to submit to the Florida Legislature, for inclusion in the 2017-18 state budget, 
a legislative funding budget request for $250,000. The request, if approved by the State, will fund the 
EEP $50,000 per year for 5 years. 
 

10. Staff Reports: 
a. Executive Director’s Report (Attachment G) 

i. OEV meetings 
ii. Investment reallocation 

iii. Collins Building status 
iv. Audit status 
v. Lease prospects status 

vi. Mag Lab Housing 
vii. Lease renewal FSU ISPA in Morgan Building  

viii. Other 
b. Director of Programs and Communications Report (Attachment H) 

i. Tech Grant 
ii. Tech Topics 

iii. Discovery on Parade 
iv. Website changes 
v. Marketing Materials-Drone video and images 

vi. Other 
c. Property Manager’s Report (Attachment I) 

 
11. New Business 

 

12. Adjourn 
 

 
Next Meeting: April 6, 2017 

(Subsequent meetings held the first Thursday of even numbered months.) 
 
 
 

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 2 of 146



1 

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting 
Thursday, December 1, 2016 
Knight Administrative Centre 

1736 W Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32310 

Minutes 

Members in Attendance: Anne Longman, Keith Bowers (arrived at 12:05pm), Dustin Daniels, Rick 
Frazier (arrived at 11:30am), Eric Holmes, Dave Ramsay, April Salter, Kim Williams. 

Members not in Attendance: Paul Dean, Kim Dixon, Kristin Dozier. 

Guests: Ron Miller, Denise Bilbow, Peggy Bielby (LCRDA staff); Melissa VanSickle (Broad and 
Cassel); Mark Frost, NAI Talcor. 

1. Call to Order
Chair Anne Longman called the meeting to order at 11:05am.

2. Introduction of Guests
All present introduced themselves.

3. Modifications to Agenda
None.

4. Public Comment
None.

5. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes
a. Board of Governors Meeting, October 6, 2016

April Salter offered a motion to approve the October 6, 2016 Board of Governors meeting minutes. Dave 
Ramsay seconded the motion which passed unanimously 

6. Consent Agenda
a. Treasurer’s Report

i. Report September/October
ii. Monthly Financial Report, September 2016
iii. Monthly Financial Report, October 2016

b. Executive Committee Report, November 3, 2016

c. Investments
i. Investment Advisory Committee Report, November 17, 2016

ii. Report, September 2016
iii. Report, October 2016

d. Audit Committee Report, November 3, 2016

Attachment A 
1 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 3 of 146



 

2 
 

 

e. Jump Start Committee 
i. Report, October 11, 2016  

ii. Report, November 1, 2016  
 

f. Executive Director Compensation Adjustment  
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval to increase the Executive 
Director’s annual base salary $6,000 (an approximately 4.65% increase) to $135,000 per year 
retroactive to October 1, 2016. 
 

g. Internal Controls & Operating Procedures Changes 
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of a change to the Authority’s 
Internal Control and Operating Procedures recommended by the Audit Committee.  The 
changes include: a) directing an original monthly Bank Statement with check facsimiles be 
sent to the Executive Director for review, and b) clarifies related procedures.  This procedure 
was previously performed by the Audit Committee Chair.   
 

h. Standard Office Lease and Personal Guaranty  
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of changes to the Standard 
Office Lease and the addition of a personal guaranty.  
 

i. Sensatek Propulsion Technology, Inc. Lease and Personal Guaranty 
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of a one-year lease with 
Sensatek Propulsion Technology, Inc. for Room 113 in the Knight Centre building through 
July 31, 2017, including a stipulation to accept changes to the insurance requirements as 
negotiated by the Executive Director.  The lease is for 164 square feet at $14.50 per square 
foot plus taxes, internet access, and copier usage charges.  
 

j. NWRDC Lease Modification  
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of a modification to the 
Authority’s lease with FSU for NWRDC’s space in the Morgan Building. The modification 
changes the lease to a month-to-month term with 90 days’ written notice to terminate, and 
expands the space occupied by NWRDC from 2,314 sf to 4,003 sf.  

 

k. NWRDC/Danfoss Letter Agreement  
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of a Letter Agreement between 
the Authority, FSU, and Danfoss regarding NWRDC’s use of Danfoss’ furniture in space 
leased by NWRDC in the Morgan Building. 
 

l. Nanostrata Lease 
The Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of an amendment to the lease 
with Nanostrata in the Knight Administrative Centre Building, extending the lease for one 
year under the same terms and conditions.  

Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the consent agenda items. Eric Holmes seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously. 

 

1. Bing Energy Settlement Agreement  

Attachment A 
2 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 4 of 146



 

3 
 

The Chair requests ratification of her approval of a settlement agreement between the Authority 
and Bing Energy.  The agreement: 1) gives Bing Energy a license until February 15, 2017 for 24-
hour access to remove its property; 2) allows Bing Energy to store its property in storage 
containers in the parking lot occupying no more than six parking spots, and the Authority agrees 
to the location of containers; 3) requires Bing Energy to mark and segregate any hazardous 
materials requiring special disposal; 4) requires Bing Energy to remove its property from the 
building by December 15, 2016, and from the parking lot by February 15, 2017; 5) if not removed 
from the parking lot by February 15, 2017, then the Authority has the right to dispose of the 
property without any further accounting or action by the court; 6) the Authority will have an 
“administrative claim” for $32,610.80 for the 6-month license from August 15, 2016 to February 
15, 2017 (the full monthly lease rate, prorated if Bing Energy leaves early) plus $5,000 attorney’s 
fees. Administrative claims receive a higher priority in bankruptcy than do other unsecured 
claims.  This settlement does not impact the Authority’s unsecured claims filed for rent and 
expenses incurred prior to the Bing Energy’s bankruptcy filing.  

April Salter offered a motion to ratify the settlement agreement. Keith Bowers seconded the motion, which 
passed unanimously. Kim Williams abstained from the vote. 

 

2. Lease Policy  
Executive Committee requests ratification of its approval of a new policy 16-01 Lease Policy. 
The purpose of the policy is to delegate the authority of the Board of Governors to approve and 
execute certain leases or subleases for space in buildings owned by the Authority (collectively 
“Leases”) to the Executive Director of the Authority.   

After discussion, the Board of Governors suggested that the policy language addressing the definition of 
conflict of interest under 2.b.ii: include “or potential for gain” following the phrase “…or in which the 
Executive Director or any relative has a beneficial interest.” Dave Ramsay offered a motion to ratify the 
Executive Committee approval of the policy as modified. Eric Holmes seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously.  

 

3. Entrepreneurial Excellence Program (EEP) Director Agreement and Funding  
Staff requests approval of an agreement with Larry Lynch to provide Program Director services 
related to conducting EEP Class 13 in March/April of 2017.  The agreement is in the amount of 
$20,000, and for the term from December 1, 2016 through May 31, 2017 to be paid $3,333.33 per 
month. The agreement also requires that Mr. Lynch seek out additional funding opportunities to 
conduct future EEP classes. Further, staff requests approval to use $20,000 of the Inkbridge 
Escrow Fund (IEF) to fund the amounts due under the agreement with Larry Lynch.  The current 
balance of the IEF is $55,000.  

The Board noted that any legislative funding request should be for a 3-year period, and requested that 
Larry Lynch present an overview of the program: its scope of work, history, operations, metrics, and 
successes at the next Board of Governors meeting. Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the 
agreement. Eric Holmes seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

 

4. Jump Start Committee Status  
Ron Miller provided an update on the Jump Start Committee members, meetings, objectives, and 
actions to date. Melissa VanSickle reported that the creation of a 501(c)(3) organization to 
support the incubator is proceeding. 

Attachment A 
3 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 5 of 146



 

4 
 

 

5. Chair’s Report  
Chair Anne Longman reported that individual meetings with the Intergovernmental Agency 
members are underway. A trolley tour with key elected officials will be planned to provide 
information and an updated view of the Park. She encouraged Board of Governor members to 
share their thoughts and ideas for raising awareness of the Park with staff. 
 

6. Staff Reports: 
a. Executive Director’s Report  
Ron Miller reported that the Investment Advisory Committee decided to terminate any 
investment in the Florida Local Government Investment Trust, and move $1 million from 
Florida Prime to the SPIA Fund up to the maximum amount of its cap, and if possible with 
any remaining amount, ladder CDs for higher return. Audit field work is complete, and fast-
paced planning for Jump Start continues. An RFP for a new auditor will be drafted for early 
2017. Dave Ramsay noted that the Authority has no issues with the existing auditor but that 
board practice suggests 3-year interval RFPs for most vendor contracts. 
b. Director of Programs and Communications Report 
Denise Bilbow reported that EEP rebranding is complete. EEP Class 12 graduates are already 
active in the community. E-month activities include a “My View” in the Tallahassee 
Democrat on November 19, 2016, and a Tech Topics held in Innovation Park on November 
9, 2016. A full-page Florida Trend ad (FSU, FAMU, and the Authority are sharing the cost 
equally) will be published in the January 2017 edition. Three Knight Grant applications have 
been submitted. The Authority is working in coordination with the Mag Lab on several 
events. 
c. Property Manager’s Report  
Mark Frost reported that Common Area Maintenance fee invoices for 2015-2016 have been 
sent out and will be collected by December 30, 2016.  

 

7. New Business 
Dave Ramsay noted that Danfoss Turbocor will have it’s opening next week, and will begin 
working on an additional expansion. 

 

8. Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:05pm. 
 

Next Meeting: February 2, 2017 
(Subsequent meetings held the first Thursday of even numbered months.) 

 
 
 

 

Attachment A 
4 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 6 of 146



1 

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Treasurer's Report 
February 2, 2017 

The following is a summary of the more significant items relating to financial position, financial 
operations, and the budget for the months ending November 30, 2016 and December 31, 2016 
and the fiscal year-to-date for 3 months through December 31, 2016. 

1) Balance Sheet
Increase/ (Decrease) 

Changes for the month: 11/30/16 12/31/16 
Operating cash 1-3 $ 6,057 $ 40,346 
Receivables 1 $ 5,777   ($ 35,960)  
Accumulated depreciation and amortization   ($ 24,897)   ($ 24,897) 
Trust escrow 2 0 ($ 20,000) 
Investments 3 ($   5,063) $   3,355 
Total assets  ($ 16,616) ($ 42,003) 
Total liabilities  $ 19,788   ($ 22,893) 
Total capital  ($ 36,404) ($ 19,110) 

1. 12/16 Receivables decrease due to collection of annual CAM charges; also, increased
cash
2. 12/16 Received funds from Trust Escrow for EEP funding; also, increased cash since
funds will be paid out over 6 months
3. 11/16 Liquidated FLGIT investment $9,604; also, increased cash

2) Income Statement
Month 

11/30/16 12/31/16 Year-to-Date 
Interest income  $   3,257 $   2,845 $   10,697   

Net operating income (loss) 4 
(before depreciation and amortization expense) ($ 11,507) $ 5,787 ($   10,969) 

Less:  Depreciation and amort. expense ($ 24,897) ($ 24,897) ($   74,690) 
Net income (loss)  ($ 36,403) ($ 19,110) ($   85,659) 

4. 12/16 Installment payment of $15,000 for annual audit

3) Cash Flow Statement

Operating Cash 
Beginning balance $ 176,876  

Net change    46,404 
Ending balance $ 223,280  

Operating cash is adequate to meet current cash disbursement needs.   

Attachment B 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 7 of 146



   

2 

4) Budget Comparison Statement 

a) Revenues: 
Revenue Variances Year-to-Date 

Actual  $ 172,355   
Budgeted      165,638 

Variance Favorable (Unfavorable)  $     6,717 
 
Variance breakdown:  

Rent 5 $     4,241 
Interest income   797 
EEP program revenue 1,600 
All other               79  
 Variance Favorable (Unfavorable)  $     6,717 

5. Added NWRDC space and new Knight lease 

b) Operating Expenses (before Depreciation and Amortization): 

Operating Expenses Year-to-Date 
Budgeted $ 204,465   
Actual        183,324 

Variance Favorable (Unfavorable) $   21,141 

 
Operating Expense Variances 

(Year-to-Date) 
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable) 
Payroll ($     170) 
Utilities   4,846 
Repairs/Maintenance  3,204 
Cleaning & Improvements 2,000 
Services 6 4,704 
Property Administration 7     6,557 
  
Total Favorable Variance  $ 21,141 
 
6. HVAC PM contract not yet completed; $4,900 budgeted for the quarter 
7. EEP program director contract was not completed until December which 

deferred two months budgeted expense ($3,333 each) 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Dave Ramsay, Treasurer 

Attachment B 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 8 of 146



For the Month:

SECURITY OWNED BALANCE BOM EARNINGS ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS BALANCE EOM YIELD

FL PRIME 1,412,637.91$     991.66$         -$                    -$  1,413,629.57$         0.842%

SPIA 2,461,054.67       2,273.68        - - 2,463,328.35           1.129%

FLGIT 9,604.12              (25.16)           - 9,578.96 - -3.141%

3,883,296.70$     3,240.18$      -$  9,578.96$           3,876,957.92$         1.001%

For the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1:

SECURITY OWNED BALANCE BOP EARNINGS ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS BALANCE EOP YIELD

FL PRIME 1,411,609.01$     2,020.56$      -$                    -$  1,413,629.57$         0.859%

SPIA 2,457,505.63       5,822.72        - - 2,463,328.35           1.416%

FLGIT 9,604.84              (25.88)           - 9,578.96 - -1.616%

3,878,719.48$     7,817.40$      -$  9,578.96$           3,876,957.92$         1.209%

Investments Limited as to Use (Capital Improvement Fund)       1,400,000.00$         
Unrestricted Investments 2,476,957.92$         

NOTABLE ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO ACCOUNTS:

Note:  Security descriptions shown on reverse

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

For period ending November 30, 2016

11/16 Liquidated remaining investment in FLGIT; funds held in operating cash account pending January 2017 decision regarding CD 
investments, and operating cash account requirements.

Attachment C1 
1 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 9 of 146



SECURITY DESCRIPTIONS:







SPIA – Florida Treasury Special Purpose Investment Trust – The Florida State Treasury operates a special investment 
program for public entities other than the State.  This program is authorized in Section 17.61(1), Florida Statutes and is 
called the Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA).    Component units of the State, Universities, or Colleges 
that are created by the Florida Constitution or Florida Statutes are eligible to invest in SPIA. Current non-component unit 
participants, like the Authority, are allowed to stay in the program with capped investment limits and a minimum balance 
equal to 60% of the previous 3 months average balance. Liquidations in excess of the minimum balance require 6 months’ 
notice.  SPIA funds are invested in the same portfolio as Treasury funds, so the pool of funds has a stable base of funds (over 
85% of the funds are captive trust funds) not needed for immediate disbursement.  These funds are invested in a combination 
of short-term liquid instruments and intermediate-term fixed income securities.  This “barbell” investment strategy, along 
with incremental income produced by securities lending, has the ability to return higher yields than a typical money market 
fund.  Participants have the ability to invest and obtain fund withdrawals same day with an 11:00 a.m. deadline for notifying 
the Treasury.  The SPIA maintains a credit rating of A+f by Standard & Poor’s.

FLGIT – Florida Local Government Investment Trust Government Fund – The FLGIT is a local government 
investment pool created by the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, and the Florida Association of 
Counties for the purpose of providing public entities with an investment program that focuses on longer-term securities with 
the highest credit ratings.  The effective maturity of the underlying investments is five years or less.  The FLGIT invests in 
money markets, Treasury Notes, asset-backed securities, and federal agency obligations.  This investment type is subject to 
some market risk due to fluctuating prices and liquidity risk due to advance redemption notification requirements.  However, 
it has a professional investment advisor and an investment advisory board, and provides diversity in the Fund’s portfolio.  
The FLGIT maintains a credit rating of AAA by Standard & Poor’s.   

FL PRIME - SBA Florida Prime - The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida PRIME) was created by an 
Act of the Florida Legislature in 1977 and currently serves over 800 participants across the state. Invests exclusively in short-
term, high-quality fixed-income securities rated in the highest short-term rating category by one or more nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations, or securities of comparable quality. Seeks to maintain a $1.00 value and maintain 
a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, with the maximum maturity of any investment limited to 397 days.  Rated 
AAAm by Standard & Poor's, the highest rating available for a local government investment pool. Complies with legislation 
that requires numerous operational and reporting enhancements, including restating investment objectives to emphasize 
safety, liquidity and competitive returns with minimization of risks; and providing for enhanced internal controls, 
transparency and communication. Federated Investors has managed the assets of Florida PRIME to the exact specifications 
of its investment policies since February 13, 2008.

Attachment C1 
2 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 10 of 146



‐5.00%

‐4.00%

‐3.00%

‐2.00%

‐1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%
12
/1
2

2/
13

4/
13

6/
13

8/
13

10
/1
3

12
/1
3

2/
14

4/
14

6/
14

8/
14

10
/1
4

12
/1
4

2/
15

4/
15

6/
15

8/
15

10
/1
5

12
/1
5

2/
16

4/
16

6/
16

8/
16

10
/1
6

A
nn
ua
li
ze
d 
R
et
ur
n

Leon County Research & Development Authority
Investment Yield

SPIA Annualized Return (Net) FLGIT Annualized Return FL PRIME Annualized Return (Net)

SPIA 12 Mos. Moving Avg. FLGIT 12 Mos. Moving Avg.

Attachment C1 
3 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 11 of 146



 $‐

 $500,000.00

 $1,000,000.00

 $1,500,000.00

 $2,000,000.00

 $2,500,000.00

 $3,000,000.00

 $3,500,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $4,500,000.00
12
/1
2

2/
13

4/
13

6/
13

8/
13

10
/1
3

12
/1
3

2/
14

4/
14

6/
14

8/
14

10
/1
4

12
/1
4

2/
15

4/
15

6/
15

8/
15

10
/1
5

12
/1
5

2/
16

4/
16

6/
16

8/
16

10
/1
6

Leon County Research & Development Authority
Investments Balances

FLGIT Ending Balance SPIA Ending Balance FL PRIME Ending Balance

Attachment C1 
4 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 12 of 146



For the Month:

SECURITY OWNED BALANCE BOM EARNINGS ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS BALANCE EOM YIELD

FL PRIME 1,413,629.57$     1,080.93$      -$                    -$  1,414,710.50$         0.918%

SPIA 2,463,328.35       1,745.57        - - 2,465,073.92           0.835%

FLGIT - - - - - 0.000%

3,876,957.92$     2,826.50$      -$  -$  3,879,784.42$         0.875%

For the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1:

SECURITY OWNED BALANCE BOP EARNINGS ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS BALANCE EOP YIELD

FL PRIME 1,411,609.01$     3,101.49$      -$                    -$  1,414,710.50$         0.878%

SPIA 2,457,505.63       7,568.29        - - 2,465,073.92           1.222%

FLGIT 9,604.84              (25.88)           - 9,578.96 - -1.616%

3,878,719.48$     10,643.90$    -$  9,578.96$           3,879,784.42$         1.098%

Investments Limited as to Use (Capital Improvement Fund)       1,400,000.00$         
Unrestricted Investments 2,479,784.42$         

NOTABLE ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO ACCOUNTS:

Note:  Security descriptions shown on reverse

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

For period ending December 31, 2016

11/16 Liquidated remaining investment in FLGIT; funds held in operating cash account pending January 2017 decision regarding CD 
investments, and operating cash account requirements.

Attachment C2 
1 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 13 of 146



SECURITY DESCRIPTIONS:







SPIA – Florida Treasury Special Purpose Investment Trust – The Florida State Treasury operates a special investment 
program for public entities other than the State.  This program is authorized in Section 17.61(1), Florida Statutes and is 
called the Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA).    Component units of the State, Universities, or Colleges 
that are created by the Florida Constitution or Florida Statutes are eligible to invest in SPIA. Current non-component unit 
participants, like the Authority, are allowed to stay in the program with capped investment limits and a minimum balance 
equal to 60% of the previous 3 months average balance. Liquidations in excess of the minimum balance require 6 months’ 
notice.  SPIA funds are invested in the same portfolio as Treasury funds, so the pool of funds has a stable base of funds (over 
85% of the funds are captive trust funds) not needed for immediate disbursement.  These funds are invested in a combination 
of short-term liquid instruments and intermediate-term fixed income securities.  This “barbell” investment strategy, along 
with incremental income produced by securities lending, has the ability to return higher yields than a typical money market 
fund.  Participants have the ability to invest and obtain fund withdrawals same day with an 11:00 a.m. deadline for notifying 
the Treasury.  The SPIA maintains a credit rating of A+f by Standard & Poor’s.

FLGIT – Florida Local Government Investment Trust Government Fund – The FLGIT is a local government 
investment pool created by the Florida Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers, and the Florida Association of 
Counties for the purpose of providing public entities with an investment program that focuses on longer-term securities with 
the highest credit ratings.  The effective maturity of the underlying investments is five years or less.  The FLGIT invests in 
money markets, Treasury Notes, asset-backed securities, and federal agency obligations.  This investment type is subject to 
some market risk due to fluctuating prices and liquidity risk due to advance redemption notification requirements.  However, 
it has a professional investment advisor and an investment advisory board, and provides diversity in the Fund’s portfolio.  
The FLGIT maintains a credit rating of AAA by Standard & Poor’s.   

FL PRIME - SBA Florida Prime - The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida PRIME) was created by an 
Act of the Florida Legislature in 1977 and currently serves over 800 participants across the state. Invests exclusively in short-
term, high-quality fixed-income securities rated in the highest short-term rating category by one or more nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations, or securities of comparable quality. Seeks to maintain a $1.00 value and maintain 
a weighted average maturity of 60 days or less, with the maximum maturity of any investment limited to 397 days.  Rated 
AAAm by Standard & Poor's, the highest rating available for a local government investment pool. Complies with legislation 
that requires numerous operational and reporting enhancements, including restating investment objectives to emphasize 
safety, liquidity and competitive returns with minimization of risks; and providing for enhanced internal controls, 
transparency and communication. Federated Investors has managed the assets of Florida PRIME to the exact specifications 
of its investment policies since February 13, 2008.

Attachment C2 
2 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 14 of 146



‐5.00%

‐4.00%

‐3.00%

‐2.00%

‐1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%
1/
13

3/
13

5/
13

7/
13

9/
13

11
/1
3

1/
14

3/
14

5/
14

7/
14

9/
14

11
/1
4

1/
15

3/
15

5/
15

7/
15

9/
15

11
/1
5

1/
16

3/
16

5/
16

7/
16

9/
16

11
/1
6

A
nn
ua
li
ze
d 
R
et
ur
n

Leon County Research & Development Authority
Investment Yield

SPIA Annualized Return (Net) FLGIT Annualized Return FL PRIME Annualized Return (Net)

SPIA 12 Mos. Moving Avg. FLGIT 12 Mos. Moving Avg.

Attachment C2 
3 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 15 of 146



 $‐

 $500,000.00

 $1,000,000.00

 $1,500,000.00

 $2,000,000.00

 $2,500,000.00

 $3,000,000.00

 $3,500,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $4,500,000.00
1/
13

3/
13

5/
13

7/
13

9/
13

11
/1
3

1/
14

3/
14

5/
14

7/
14

9/
14

11
/1
4

1/
15

3/
15

5/
15

7/
15

9/
15

11
/1
5

1/
16

3/
16

5/
16

7/
16

9/
16

11
/1
6

Leon County Research & Development Authority
Investments Balances

FLGIT Ending Balance SPIA Ending Balance FL PRIME Ending Balance

Attachment C2 
4 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 16 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 1 of 11 

Leon County Research and Development Authority 

Policy No. 11-5 

Title: Investment Policy 

Date Adopted: October 4, 2011 

Revised:  August 7, 2013; December 4, 2014; September 3, 2015; February 2, 2017 
Effective Date: October 1, 2015February 2, 2017 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Introduction 

The purpose of Policy No. 11-5, “Investment Policy,” is to set forth the framework within which The Leon 

County Research and Development Authority (“the Authority”) will manage investment assets 

belonging to the Authority.  

The Authority’s Board of Governors (“the Board”) is responsible for setting guidelines for the 

investment of the Authority’s portfolio through the adoption of this Investment Policy. The Board has 

established the Investment Advisory Committee (“the Committee”) to provide oversight of this 

Investment Policy. and The Committee’s purpose, authority, composition, qualifications for members, 

meetings, and responsibilities are further defined by the Committee Charter approved by the Board. 

charged it with the responsibility of reviewing and recommending changes to the Policy no less than 

annually. The Committee meets semi-annually unless interim issues require more frequent meetings.  

Meetings are noticed and open to the public; and, the minutes of each meeting are recorded. The 

Committee, appointed by the Chair of the Authority’s Board, consists of at least one Board member and 

qualified citizens with financial or investment expertise who are independent of employment and 

business relationships with the Authority.  The Chair of the Committee will be appointed by the Chair of 

the Authority and must be a member of the Authority’s Board of Governors. 

I. Scope

This policy shall apply to all funds held by the Authority in excess of those required to meet current 

expenses and shall be in compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.  

Attachment C3 
1 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 17 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 2 of 11 

 

II.  Objectives 

 

The objectives of the Authority Investment Policy, in order of priority, are to provide safety of capital 

(preservation of the real value), liquidity of funds, and competitive net returns. For funds held with the 

expectation of expenditure within 6 months, the principal investment objective shall be preservation of 

the real value (i.e. inflation-adjusted value) of capital. For funds held with the expectation of expenditure 

beyond 6 months, capital may be invested subject to moderate levels of interest rate risk, credit risk and 

liquidity risk, and minimal levels of other forms of risk, provided that the Authority has reasonably 

determined that the expected return premium associated with these risks is sufficiently high to warrant 

the investment. The optimization of investment returns shall be secondary to the requirements for safety 

and liquidity.   

 

III.   Performance Measurement 

 

The State Board of Administration’s Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Prime Fund) will be 

used as a benchmark for funds invested with the expectation of expenditure within 6 months.  For funds 

invested with the expectation of expenditure beyond 6 months, the benchmark shall be e an index 

comprised of US Treasuries or Government securities as set by the Committee.  The externally managed 

intergovernmental pools each specify a benchmark appropriate for the pool. 

 

IV. Prudence and Ethical Standards 

 

The primary standard for investment of the Authority’s assets shall be the Prudent Person Rule, which 

states that “Investments should be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 

which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, 

not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the 

probable income to be derived from the investment.”  

 

Officers, employees, investment managers and advisor vendors of the Authority who are involved in the 

investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with State Statutes, 

resolutions, proper management of the investment portfolio or which could impair their ability to make 

Attachment C3 
2 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 18 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 3 of 11 

 

impartial investment decisions.  Investment officials and employees, including members of the 

Committee, shall disclose any material financial interests in any investment firms, or financial 

institutions that conduct business with the Authority and shall refrain from undertaking personal 

investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the 

Authority. 

  

V.             Authority  

 

Responsibility for the investment program is vested with the Committee. The Executive Director shall 

assist the Committee by maintaining an Investment Procedures and Internal Controls Manual based on 

this Policy. The Authority may retain one or more professional organizations, as investment manager(s), 

to manage the portfolio under the guidance of these policies and the Authority’s Committee, and may 

also retain the services of investment advisor(s). The Executive Director shall perform the duties and 

responsibilities of the investment manager in the event an investment manager is not retained by the 

Authority. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as stated in the Internal Controls 

Section of this Policy. 

 

The investment manager(s) shall have substantial discretion in the management of the investments 

within the defined objective range.  The investment manager(s) is expected to optimize the Authority’s 

expectations. The investment manager(s) and investment advisor(s) serve at the will of the Authority’s 

Board of Governors, subject to the specific terms of contracts between the parties. Yield or growth 

targets, if any, established by the Authority shall be implemented by, and used in the performance 

evaluation of, the manager(s). 

 

The investment manager(s) and investment advisor(s) will provide the Committee with reports in 

sufficient detail as may be requested by the Committee in order for them to review the performance of 

the portfolio. The Committee will establish portfolio benchmarks in order to judge the performance of 

the internally managed portfolio with respect to the market and other portfolios of similar size and 

limitations.  The Committee will provide the Board a report at the close of the fiscal year recapping the 

performance of the portfolio and any outside managers, and at such other times as the Board may 

request.  

Attachment C3 
3 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 19 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 

VI.          Investment Manager(s) 

 

The duties and responsibilities of the investment manager(s) are to: 

 Exercise discretion in the management of the assets under its control in accordance with the 

Investment Policy objectives and guidelines and also expressed in separate written agreements. 

 Comply with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, regulations and fiduciary prudence, and 

due diligence requirements.  

 Promptly inform the Committee in writing regarding all significant and/or material matters and 

changes pertaining to the investment of assets or the ownership, management or financial 

stability of the investment management firm. 

 Recommend to the Committee changes, additions or deletions to the Investment Policy as 

deemed advisable. 

 Promptly vote all proxies and related actions in a manner consistent with the long-term interests 

and objectives of the Authority, including the responsibility to vote proxies related to the 

investment manager’s proprietary investment funds held, unless voting responsibility has been 

reserved in writing to the Committee or its designee.  The manager(s) has the right hereunder to 

solicit proxy voting recommendations from an independent qualified party, on matters that might 

involve potential conflicts of interest in the performance of the manager’s duties hereunder.  

 Acknowledge in writing the receipt of this Policy and acceptance of its terms. 

 

VII.               Investment Advisor(s) 

 

The Committee, with the Board’s consent, is authorized to hire an investment advisor on an as needed 

basis and the duties and responsibilities of the investment advisor(s) shall consist of the following, but 

are not limited to: participation in the selection, monitoring the performance of, and generally 

supervising any investment manager(s). The investment advisor shall also provide reports to the 

Committee, Executive Director, and Board of Governors. 

 

Attachment C3 
4 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 20 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 5 of 11 

 

VIII. Authorized Investments 

Investments should be made subject to the cash flow needs of the Authority; and such cash flows are 

subject to revisions as market conditions and the Authority’s needs change. However, when the invested 

funds are needed in whole or in part for the purpose originally intended or for more optimal investments, 

authorized staff-- with the approval of the Committee, the Authority’s Executive Committee, or Board 

Chair -- may direct the sale of the investment at the then-prevailing market price and place the proceeds 

into the proper account at the Authority’s custodian. 

 

The following are the guidelines for authorized investments and the limits on security types, issuers, and 

maturities that will be established by the Committee. The Committee shall have the option to further 

restrict investment percentages from time to time based on market conditions.  The percentage 

allocations requirements for investment types and issuers are calculated based on the original cost of 

each investment. Investments not listed in this policy are prohibited.   

 

The Authority shall invest in the following authorized instruments at the prevailing market prices or 

rates, subject to the limitations of Section 218.415 (16), Florida Statutes: 

 

A. The following intergovernmental investment pools authorized by Section 163.01 Florida 

Statutes:  

1. Local Government Surplus Trust Fund (Florida Prime) 

2. Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) 

3. Florida Local Government Investment Trust (FLGIT) 

4. Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT) 

B. Savings accounts in state-certified qualified public depositories as defined by Section 280.02, 

Florida Statutes. 

C. Certificates of deposit in state-certified qualified public depositories as defined by Section 

280.02, Florida Statues. 

D. Constant Net Asset Value Money Market Mutual Funds, which include U.S Government 

securities, repurchase Agreements, Commercial Paper and Bankers’ Acceptances. 

Investments may be made in SEC qualified constant net asset value fixed income money 

Attachment C3 
5 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 21 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 6 of 11 

 

market mutual funds rated AAAm or AAAg comprised of only those investment instruments 

as authorized in this section policy, provided that such funds do not allow derivatives.  

E. Repurchase Agreements comprised of only those investments as authorized in this policy and 

based on the requirements set forth in the Master Repurchase Agreement. 

1. All firms with whom the Authority enters into repurchase agreements will have in 

place and executed a Master Repurchase Agreement.  

2. All repurchase agreements with a term longer than one business day will have the 

collateral held by a third party custodian. The collateral held pursuant to a repurchase 

agreement shall have a maturity of less than five years and must have a mark-to-

market value of 102 percent during the term of the repurchase agreement. 

F. Bankers' Acceptances which are inventory based and issued by a bank, which has at the time 

of purchase, an unsecured, uninsured and un-guaranteed obligation rating of at least "Prime-

1" and "A" by Moody's and "A-1" and "A" by Standard & Poor’s.  

G. Commercial Paper of any United States company, which is rated at the time of purchase, 

"Prime-1" by Moody's and "A-1" by Standard & Poor's (prime commercial paper). 

H. United States Government Securities including, but not limited to: Treasury and Cash 

Management Bills, State and Local Government Series (SLGS), Notes, Bonds Treasury 

Strips, and Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS).  

I. United States Federal Agencies - Investments may be made in bonds, debentures or notes 

issued or guaranteed by United States Government agencies, provided such obligations are 

backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government.  

J. Federal Instrumentalities - Investments may be made in bonds, debentures or notes issued or 

guaranteed by the United States Government sponsored agencies (Federal Instrumentalities), 

which are non-full faith and credit agencies. 

K. Corporate Debt Securities - Investments may be made in notes, medium term notes, discount 

notes and variable-rate securities issued by any corporation, provided that such instrument is 

rated A or better by at least two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations 

(NRSRO) at time of purchase. All corporate transactions must be payable in U.S. dollars. 

L. Municipal Bonds - Investments may be made in notes or bonds issued by governmental 

entities or territorial boundaries of the United States, provided that such instrument is rated A 

or better by at least one NRSRO.   

Attachment C3 
6 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 22 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 7 of 11 

 

  

IX. Maturity and Liquidity Requirements 

 

The investment portfolio is structured in such a manner as to provide sufficient liquidity to pay 

obligations as they come due.  To that end, investments will be made to match investment maturities 

with known cash flow needs and anticipated cash-flow requirements.  Investment of current operating 

funds shall have maturities of no longer than twenty-four (24) months.  

 

Investments of non-operating funds (core funds) shall have a term appropriate to the need for the funds.  

The purchase of investments for core funds with maturities longer than three (3) years requires 

Committee approval before purchase.  

 

X. Risk and Diversification 

 

Assets shall be diversified to the extent practicable to control the risk of loss resulting from over 

concentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer, instrument, dealer, or bank through which financial 

instruments are bought and sold.  Diversification strategies within the established guidelines shall be 

reviewed and revised periodically, as deemed necessary by the Committee.  The structure of the 

portfolio is designed to minimize credit risk.   

 

The majority of the securities held will be those of the highest available credit quality ratings.  These 

would include government pools, U. S Government (AAA) securities, and commercial paper, of only the 

highest applicable rating.  Should an investment rating be downgraded to below investment grade, the 

status of the funds in question will be reviewed by the Committee to determine the costs associated with 

risk and the benefits that may still be yielded.  

 

For purposes of this Policy, the top nationally-recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs) for 

all credit-sensitive securities are Moody’s Investor Services, Standard and Poor’s, and Fitch Investor 

Services. 

 

Attachment C3 
7 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 23 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 8 of 11 

 

XI. Authorized Investment Institutions and Dealers 

 

The investment manager(s) shall only purchase securities from financial institutions, which are qualified 

as public depositories by the Treasurer of the State of Florida or from institutions designated as “Primary 

Securities Dealers” by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.  

XII. Internal Controls 

Included in any periodic financial review by an independent auditor will be an examination of the 

written system of internal controls and operational procedures established by the Executive Director and 

approved by the Board. The internal controls shall be designed to prevent losses of funds which might 

arise from fraud, employee error, and misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by 

employees of the Authority. 

 

Such controls shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 

A. The function of authorizing or performing investment transactions will be separated from the 

function of recording the transaction.   

B. Confirmation. All telephone or other electronically initiated transactions will be supported by 

written communications and approved by a person other than the person initiating the 

transaction.  Repetitive wires do not require a secondary approval; however, all non-repetitive 

wires shall have secondary approval. 

C. All securities purchased or sold will be transferred only under the "deliver versus payment" 

(DVP) method to insure that funds or securities are not released until all criteria relating to the 

specific transaction are met.  

D. The Executive Director will accept, on behalf of and in the name of the Authority, bank trust 

receipts or confirmations as evidence of actual delivery of the obligations or securities in return 

for investment of funds.  

E. Trust receipts or confirmations shall fully describe the various obligations or securities held.  The 

receipt or confirmation shall state that the investment is held in the name of the Authority.  

F. The actual obligations or securities, whether in book-entry or physical form, on which trust 

receipts or confirmations are issued, may be held by a third-party custodial bank and/or 

Attachment C3 
8 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 24 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 9 of 11 

 

institution or a designated correspondent bank which has a correspondent relationship to the 

Authority's third-party custodian.  

XIII. Reporting 

 

The investment manager(s) and investment advisor(s) are responsible for preparing periodic reports for 

submission to the Committee and Board.  These reports shall include securities in the portfolio by class 

or type, book value, income earned, and market value as of the report date as well as comparisons of 

their performance with agreed upon benchmarks.  Such reports shall be available to the public. 

 

XIV. Sale of Securities 

 

When invested funds are needed in whole or in part for the purposes originally intended, the investment 

manager(s) may sell such investments at the then-prevailing market price and place the proceeds into the 

proper account or fund of the Authority.  

 

XV. Preemption 

 

Any provision of any special act, municipal charter, or other law which prohibits or restricts the 

Authority from complying with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, or any rules under Section 218.415, 

Florida Statutes, is void to the extent of the conflict. 

 

XVI. Audits 

 

Certified public accountants conducting audits of the Authority pursuant to Section 11.45, Florida 

Statutes, shall report as part of the audit, whether or not the Authority has complied with Section 

218.415, Florida Statutes.  

  

Attachment C3 
9 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 25 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 10 of 11 

 

 

XVII. Adoption of Investment Policy  

 

This Investment Policy was adopted by the Leon County Research and Development Authority’s Board 

of Governors on October 4, 2011, and revised August 7, 2013, December 4, 2014, and October 1, 2015. 

 

Approved __________________________________     ________________  

Anne Longman, Chair      Date     

Board of Governors 

Attachment C3 
10 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 26 of 146



Investment Policy 11-05 
Page 11 of 11 

 

Investment Manager’s Certification 

       

I have read, understand and agree to abide by the requirements of this policy. 

 

 

Accepted:   _________________________________    _______________ 

          Signature    Date 

     

          ______________________________     

          Print Name  

 

         ______________________________ 

        Name of Investment Firm 

 

Attachment C3 
11 of 11

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 27 of 146



1 

Investment Advisory Committee

Leon County Research and Development Authority 

Investment Advisory Committee Charter 

Purpose 
The primary purposes of the Investment Advisory Committee are to: 

1. Assist the Board with review and oversight of the Authority’s investment policy,
objectives, guidelines and investment performance;

2. Provide recommendations to the Board on major investment objectives, strategies and
policies; and,

3. Oversee the Authority’s investment consultants and/or fund managers.

Authority 
The Investment Advisory Committee shall have the resources and appropriate authority to 
interview consultants and/or fund managers and recommend its selection(s) of such to the Board 
for its ratification.  Its recommendation to the Board will include fees and terms of service.   

Composition 
The Investment Advisory Committee shall consist of at least three members, but no more than 
seven, with at least one member being a member of the Board of Governors.  Non-board 
members may serve on the Committee, but may not serve as the Committee Chair.  The 
Authority shall request the Finance Director for the Leon County Clerk of the Circuit Court and 
Comptroller or his/her designee serve on the Committee in a non-voting capacity. The Board 
Chair shall appoint the Committee Chair from among Board members serving on the committee.  
The Committee Chair shall nominate individuals for committee membership.  Nominated 
individuals shall have investment or related financial management experience.  The Board 
Chair’s appointments for non-board members must be in writing.   

Qualifications for Committee Members 
Each member of the Investment Advisory Committee must have investment experience and be 
financially literate.  Members are expected to have: 

1. A general understanding of investment principles, strategies, transactions, and
performance criteria;

2. Experience with and understanding of investment statements and reports;
3. Experience with investment consultants and/or fund managers; and,
4. A general understanding of investment markets

Attachment C4 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 28 of 146



2 
 

 
Meetings 
The Committee shall meet annually in November,  or upon call of the Committee Chair as 
circumstances require.  The Committee will invite Board members, investment advisors, fund 
managers, or others to attend meetings and provide pertinent information as necessary.  Meeting 
agendas will be prepared in advance, along with appropriate briefing materials.  Minutes will be 
prepared for approval.  Meetings will be conducted in accordance with provisions of Florida’s 
Sunshine laws. 
 
Responsibilities 
The Committee will carry out the following responsibilities: 
 

1. Review the Authority’s investment policy, objectives and guidelines, including risk 
tolerance, at least annually, presenting to the Board recommendations for any additions, 
deletions or modifications; 

2. Develop selection criteria and recommend to the Board the selection and termination of 
the Authority’s investment consultants and/or fund managers; 

3. Review the performance of the investment portfolios, the investment consultants and 
fund managers and take appropriate action as necessary; 

4. Conduct a formal review of the consultants and/or fund managers at least every two 
years; 

5. Regularly report to the Board of Governors about Committee activities, issues, and 
related recommendations; 

6. Perform other activities that may from time to time be delegated to the Committee by the 
Board of Governors; and 

7. Review and assess the adequacy of the Investment Advisory Committee Charter annually 
requesting Board approval for proposed changes. 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Board of Governors, May 10, 2011 
Revised August 7, 2013, October 2, 2014, and June 2, 2016. 

Attachment C4 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 29 of 146



1 

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Jump Start Committee Meeting 

Thursday, December 15, 2016 
Knight Administrative Centre 

1736 W Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32310 

Report 

Members in Attendance:  Kristin Dozier, Reis Alsberry (joined the meeting at 3:10pm), Dustin Daniels 
(joined the meeting at 3:18pm), Domenick Eanniello, Eric Holmes, Wendy Plant (left the meeting at 
4:43pm), David Ramsay, Mary Jo Spector, Lawrence Tinker (left the meeting at 3:58pm), Barbara 
Wescott. 

Members not in Attendance: None. 

Guests: Ron Miller, Denise Bilbow, Peggy Bielby (LCRDA staff) 

1. Call to Order
Chair Kristin Dozier called the meeting to order at 3:05pm

2. Introduction of Guests
None.

3. Modifications to the Agenda
None.

4. Public Comment
None.

5. Approval of the draft minutes
Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the October 11, 2016 and November 1, 2016 Jump Start
Committee meeting minutes. Eric Holmes seconded the motion which passed unanimously.

6. Updated Lean Business Model Canvas
Ron Miller explained the LBMC has been updated based on discussions with potential clients and
the survey results, and the Target Client (2) and Key Activities (3) components have been revised
accordingly.

7. Survey and Prospective Client Interview Review/Discussion
Ron Miller reported that there were 21 respondents to the survey, 11 of whom are prospective
clients, and reviewed and discussed the results. Ron Miller stated that the survey responses
regarding shared equipment generally corresponded to the prior findings of the 2015 Feasibility
Needs Assessment Report. An advisory board and admissions committee will use admission
standards, oversee and enforce benchmarks, and maintain graduation requirements. Program
management will help with planning, space availability, and recruitment. Approximately 12-20
volunteers will be needed to mentor, and to provide services and program support.

8. Shared Equipment Requirements Discussion

Attachment D1 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 30 of 146



 

2 
 

A list compiled by Lawrence Tinker sets forth the general needs for all labs, as well as 
specifically for biotech and engineering labs. The next steps are determining the core equipment 
needs and the purchasing options, including available university resources. Cost, demand, use, 
space: all determine what will be useful for the minimum viable core equipment product. 
 

9. University Resources Requirements List and Access Procedures Discussion 
Ron Miller presented a list of existing FSU labs, facilities, and other resources, and discussed the 
relationships with FSU and FAMU, plus the other items to consider, such as library/database/web 
access, rates/fee structure, scheduling, and marketing.  
 

10. Facility Space Plan Concept Discussion 
Mary Jo Spector presented an overview of the Collins Building planning process: conditions 
assessment and building capabilities determination. The conditions assessment includes the 
building’s current condition, how much is reasonable to spend, code and regulatory compliance 
needed, and site assessment: hardscaping, landscaping, drainage, signage, exterior, structure, 
systems. The building capabilities determination includes assessing the overall goal, cost, 
flexibility, usage, space, renovation concepts and possible phasing. Cost, quality, and square 
footage are the three primary objective components to balance. 

 

11. Architectural and Engineering Contract Discussion 
A full building assessment by an architectural and engineering firm can be initiated with the 
information gathered to date. The AE firm will take the concept and provide a study with several 
variations that capture the intent, allow phasing, and provide a cost estimate. Four to six months 
is reasonable to finalize the AE assessment and concept drawings. Finalizing the specifics of the 
space needs and allocation should occur simultaneously by the committee. The committee will 
then use the AE assessment and determine the final option to implement. Once the concept is 
finalized, the construction drawings will be completed within 3-6 months, and then permitting 
process begins, followed by construction. A total of 18 months is likely needed achieve to the 
finished product. It will be an iterative process to reach the optimal desired result. Ron Miller 
explained that using a Leon County continuing service contracted AE firm will avoid the 
necessity of doing an RFP. 
 

12. New Business 
Ron Miller reported he is still receiving inquiries regarding donations or sponsorships. Creation 
of a 501(c)(3) foundation is underway.  
  

13. Adjourn. 
The meeting adjourned at 5:05pm. 
 

 
Next Meeting: Tuesday, January 17, 2017 

3:00 – 5:00pm 
Knight Administrative Centre, 1736 W Paul Dirac Dr 32310 

 

Attachment D1 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 31 of 146



1 

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Jump Start Committee Meeting 

Tuesday, January 17, 2017 
Knight Administrative Centre 

1736 W Paul Dirac Drive, Tallahassee, FL 32310 

Report 

Members in Attendance:  Kristin Dozier, Domenick Eanniello, Eric Holmes, Wendy Plant (left the 
meeting at 4:35pm), David Ramsay, Mary Jo Spector, Lawrence Tinker, Barbara Wescott. 

Members not in Attendance: Reis Alsberry, Dustin Daniels 

Guests: Lucas Lindsey, Executive Director, Domi Station; Ron Miller, Denise Bilbow, Peggy Bielby 
(LCRDA staff) 

1. Call to Order
Chair Kristin Dozier called the meeting to order at 3:05pm

2. Introduction of Guests
Kristin Dozier introduced Lucas Lindsey

3. Modifications to the Agenda
Ron Miller noted that the Sales and Marketing agenda item will be a) Sales and Marketing Plan
discussion, b) Branding

4. Public Comment
None.

5. Approval of the draft minutes
Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the December 15, 2016 Jump Start Committee meeting
minutes. Domenick Eanniello seconded the motion which passed unanimously.

6. Updated Lean Business Model Canvas
Ron Miller explained the LBMC has been updated as a result of the last meeting discussions: (4)
Key Resources and the (2) Target Client components; (5) Marketing Plan, (6) Sales Plan, and (7)
Key Partners will be discussed later in the meeting.

7. Key Partners Discussion
What sort of partners will make us efficient and effective? Domi, Jim Moran Institute, schools are
sources both for entrepreneurs, but also for mentors, programs, education, and training components.
Formalizing strategic partnership relationships will help when seeking funding.
Lucas Lindsey presented a video highlighting Domi’s mission, history, operations, and programs.
Domi’s space is more IT oriented, with no wet or dry labs. For tech transfer and research
commercialization Domi is well-positioned to partner with Innovation Park’s incubator,
particularly Domi’s “TCAP” (Technology Commercialization Accelerator Program) begun in
2015.  Utilizing a DOMI program for Jump Start clients, at least initially, makes sense. A needs

Attachment D2 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 32 of 146



 

2 
 

assessment will determine the best approach for each client. Ron Miller summarized that key 
partnerships make sense to effect a speedy start up and sharing of expertise and expenses, but our 
individual brand has to be distinct.  
 

8. Sales and Marketing 
a) Marketing: Eighteen marketing questions focused on potential clients but also apply to 

potential partners/sponsors/stakeholders. Marketing means how we reach potential clients and 
get the word out. “Product” is services, and we will need impact tracking to demonstrate the 
program benefits. “Price” structure includes rent charged and free space made available. 
“Place” is a component of how much will be spent on the facility and the quality. “Promotion” 
will include social media. “People” will determine what type of staff.  

b) Sales: Initial step: identifying the new clients: via EEP or other programs, the needs assessment 
and formalizing the entry criteria and evaluating where they are and whether they are 
coachable. Subsequent steps: for existing clients: promotion in the community, coaching and 
evaluating. For all clients: exit criteria: clients cannot stay indefinitely, although anchor tenants 
have a value. The Advisory Board will create and enforce both entry and exit evaluations.  

Possible names: Committee members should submit any name ideas for the facility to LCRDA 
staff. Board of Governors member April Salter will be consulted also. 
Denise Bilbow reported that the Innovation Park website incubator landing page is live, and will 
be revised and expanded as the project progresses and develops. 

 

9. Architectural and Engineering (A&E)  update 
Ron Miller and Mary Jo Spector met with Cam Whitlock of Lewis + Whitlock, PA regarding the  
proposal for A&E study as discussed last meeting.  The firm has a continuing service agreement 
with Leon County, so an RFP is not required. The proposal should be ready in one week, the chair 
can sign the contract with Lewis + Whitlock, and then it will be 6-8 weeks for the final A&E 
assessment. 
 

10. Economic Development Administration (EDA) visit update 
Kristin Dozier reported that she and Ron Miller met with the U.S. Department of Commerce, 
EDA’s Florida representative Greg Vaday who was encouraging regarding applications for EDA 
grant funding for construction. He will serve as a resource for funding requests, and the applications 
are accepted on a rolling basis. 
  

11. Next Steps 
A&E/LBMC: Building a business plan/self-sustaining financial model and budget. 
 

12. New Business 
Creation of a 501(c)(3) foundation is underway.  
   

13. Adjourn. 
The meeting adjourned at 5:10pm. 

 
Next Meeting: TBD 

 

Attachment D2 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 33 of 146



SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Service Agreement (“Service Agreement”) is entered this ____ day of February, 2017 
(the “Effective Date”), by and between the LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, of the County of Leon and State of Florida (“LCRDA”) and 
ARCHITECTS LEWIS + WHITLOCK (“Architect”). 

Recitals 

A. Architect and Leon County, a charter county and political subdivision of the State
of Florida (“County”) are parties to that certain Agreement effective October 23, 2014 (“County 
Contract”), which, together with all exhibits to the County Contract is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

B. Pursuant to paragraph XII of the Solicitation Document attached as Exhibit A to
the County Contract, LCRDA may engage Architect’s services pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of the County Contract.  

C. LCRDA desires to retain Architect to provide certain services to LCRDA and
Architect desires to perform the services for LCRDA, all under the terms and conditions of the 
County Contract and as set forth below. 

Now therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto have agreed, and do hereby agree as follows: 

Agreement 

1. Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this
Agreement.  

2. Term.  LCRDA hereby retains Architect for a period commencing on the Effective Date
and ending upon the earlier of completion of the Services (as hereafter defined) or termination 
pursuant to the County Contract (the “Term”). 

3. Services.  During the Term, Architect shall provide the services (the “Services”) set forth
on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein.  

4. Compensation.  Architect shall be compensated at the lump sum fee set forth in Exhibit
“A”. 

5. Notices.  Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be
deemed sufficiently given if sent by registered or certified mail, return-receipt-requested, and 
addressed as follows (the address of either party may be changed by giving notice thereof to the 
other party): 

Attachment E 
1 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 34 of 146



 

 

 
If to LCRDA: Leon County Research and Development Authority 
   Attn: Ron Miller 
   1736 W. Paul Dirac Drive 
   Tallahassee, Florida 32310 
 
If to Architect: Architects Lewis + Whitlock 
   Attn: Camden Whitlock 
   206 W. Virginia Street 
   Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

 
6. County Contract.  The terms and conditions of the County Contract shall govern the parties, 

the performance of the Services, and this Agreement. LCRDA assumes all rights and 
responsibilities of Leon County and Architect assumes all rights and responsibilities of Architect, 
as set forth in the County Contract. In the event there is a conflict between the terms of this Service 
Agreement and the County Contract, the terms of the County Contract shall control. 

 
7. Counterparts. This Service Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. This Service Agreement may be executed by facsimile signature. 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

  

Attachment E 
2 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 35 of 146



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their signatures as of the date first 
written above. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Witness as to Architect 
 
_________________________________ 
(Type or print name of witness) 
 
_________________________________ 
Witness as to Architect 
 
_________________________________ 
(Type or print name of witness) 
 
 

ARCHITECTS LEWIS + WHITLOCK, 
 
 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
     ______________, President 

 
 
_________________________________ 
Witness as to Authority 
 
_________________________________ 
(Type or print name of witness) 
 
_________________________________ 
Witness as to Authority 
 
_________________________________ 
(Type or print name of witness) 
 

 
 
LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND  
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
     Anne Longman, Chair 

 
  

Attachment E 
3 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 36 of 146



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Attachment E 
4 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 37 of 146



 

 

   

 

 

 

Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 

                                                         
   

Architects|Lewis+Whitlock 

 
206 west virginia street | tallahassee florida 32301 | (ph) 850 942 1718 (fax) 850 942 2110 | (web) think3d.net | FLAA0003316 

   
January 19, 2017 (Rev. 1/26/17) 
 
 
Mr. Ronald J. Miller, Executive Director 
Leon County R&D Authority / Innovation Park 
1736 W. Paul Dirac Drive  
Tallahassee, FL 32310 
 
RE: Proposal for Professional Services 
 Jump Start / Collins Building Study 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A. (AL+W) is pleased to present this proposal for 
professional services. 
 
Scope of Project 
This study consists of a building assessment and schematic design study to convert the 
Collins Building (at Innovation Park) into a co-working / fab lab facility for start-up 
businesses. The building size is approximately 25,800 gross square feet.  
 
The initial design concept provided by the owner (see attached) includes modular 
maker spaces in the eastern half of the building, subdivided (existing) wet lab space, a 
new classroom, meeting rooms, office space, and coffee/collaboration space. 
 
H2 Engineering and Structural Solutions Consulting Engineers are included on our 
team for this study. 
 
Services/Deliverables 

1. Building assessment:  cursory survey of existing building, ADA review; 
assessment of site envelope/structure/MPE systems. 

2. Schematic design concept:  develop/refine floor plan concept, code review, cost 
estimate.  

3. Project deliverables: executive summary report and associated floor plan 
graphics for the above. Deliverables include 5 hardcopies and a digital (.pdf) 
copy. 

4. Services excluded from this proposal: 
a. Civil Engineering 
b. Hazardous materials investigation 

 
Project Schedule 
The following sequential schedule is proposed for this project. Variations from this 
schedule imposed by delayed Owner Review or changes to the scope may result in 
delays to the project.   
 
   

  

Attachment E 
5 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 38 of 146



Jump Start / Collins Building Study 
January 19, 2017 (Rev. 1/26/17) 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Architects Notice-to-proceed    Day 1 
  Building Assessment     4 Weeks 

Schematic Design     4 Weeks 
 

Fee and Invoicing 
Basic services for the project scope referenced herein shall be provided for a lump  
sum fee. The project fee, project tasks and billing milestones are indicated on the 
Architectural Fee Schedule. 
 
Additional Services 
Any changes to the project scope delineated herein following authorization of this 
proposal shall be undertaken as additional services requiring compensation to the 
Architect.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to work with you once again.  Please call if you have any 
questions or concerns regarding this proposal. 
 
Sincerely,  
Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, P.A. 
 
 
 
Camden Whitlock, AIA | LEED AP 
Principal 
 
Att: Architectural Fee Schedule 
 H2 Engineering Proposal 
 Structural Solutions Proposal 
 Design concept 

Attachment E 
6 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 39 of 146



ARCHITECTURAL FEE SCHEDULE

Jump Start | Collins Building SD Study

January 19, 2017 (Rev. 1/26/17)

Hourly Rates: Hourly Rate

Principal $160.00

Project Manager $125.00

Graduate Architect $85.00
Clerical $40.00

Study Principal Project Subtotal

Manager

Building Assessment 8.0 24.0 24.0         -           

Code Review 2.0 8.0 -           

Floor Plans 2.0 16.0 40.0         -           

Cost Estimate 6.0 2.0 4.0           -           

Report 2.0 4.0 4.0           4.0           

Coordination / Meetings / Quality Control 8.0 16.0 -           4.0           

total hours 18.0         38.0          48.0         8.0           

hourly rate $160.00 $125.00 $85.00 $40.00

task sub-total 2,880.00  4,750.00   4,080.00  320.00     12,030$       

Sub-Total 12,030$       

Consultant Fees

Structural Solutions Engineers $1,250

H2 Engineering, Inc. $9,860

Lump Sum Fee 23,140$     

 Graduate 

Architect  Clerical 

Attachment E 
7 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 40 of 146



 
 

Collins Building at Innovation Park  

Engineering Services 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT - A1 

January 24, 2017 

 

H2Engineering, Inc. 

YOUR FIRST CHOICE 

EXHIBIT A – Scope of Services 

A1 PROJECT UNDERSTANDING/BACKGROUND 

.1 The project consists of a building assessment and schematic design study to convert the Collins Building 

(at Innovation Park) into a co-working/fab lab / innovation hub for the Park. 

.2 The building is approximately 25,000 square feet. 

 

A2 PRE-DESIGN 

.1 Assessment 

.a Meet with OWNER to ascertain project requirements. 

.b Review of available existing construction documents. 

.c Site investigation(s) to survey existing conditions, locations and types of MEP systems. 

.d Florida Building Code and NFPA Codes analysis as applicable to MEP systems. 

.e Memo style narrative describing existing conditions based on site survey and as-built plans review. 

.f No functional testing MEP systems is included. 

.2 Schematic Design 

.a Meet with OWNER to gather utility needs. 

.b Preliminary MEP load estimates and utility impacts. 

.c Assist project team with design considerations associated with MEP facilities. 

Attachment E 
8 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 41 of 146



 
 

Collins Building at Innovation Park  

Engineering Services 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT - A2 

January 24, 2017 

 

H2Engineering, Inc. 

YOUR FIRST CHOICE 

.d Memo style recommended MEP scope narrative based on understanding of desired space program 

and existing conditions survey and as-built plans review. 

.e MEP opinion of probable cost for recommended program. 

A3 EXCLUSIONS 

.1 Construction documents. 

.2 Existing conditions drawings. 

END OF EXHIBIT A 

Attachment E 
9 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 42 of 146



 
 

Collins Building at Innovation Park  

Engineering Services 

CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT - B1 

January 24, 2017 

 

H2Engineering, Inc. 

YOUR FIRST CHOICE 

EXHIBIT B – Compensation 

B1 LUMP SUM FEE 

.1 The lump sum fee for the Basic Services is $9,860.00. 

.2 The basic services fee is derived as follows: 

Position

Leon County 

Minor Services 

Billing Rates

Hours

Principal $177.50 x 8 = 1,420.00$                

Registered Professional (PE, RCDD, CxA, PA) $138.75 x 40 = 5,550.00$                

Graduate Engineer $100.00 x 28 = 2,800.00$                

Engineering Designer $76.25 x 0 = -$                         

Construction Administrator/Cx Tech $75.00 x 0 = -$                         

BIM / CAD Technician $60.00 x 0 = -$                         

Administrative $45.00 x 2 = 90.00$                     

9,860.00$                Total Fee
 

B2 PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Upon delivery of Conditions Assessment 4,140.00$            

Upon delivery of Schematic Design Narrative and Opinion of Probable Cost 5,720.00$            

Total 9,860.00$            
 

B3 REIMBURSABLES 

.1 Reimbursable factor –1.1 

END OF EXHIBIT B 

Attachment E 
10 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 43 of 146



  

Collins Building Assessment   Page 1 of 2 
Tallahassee, Florida 

 

 

 

   3370 Capital Circle NE, Suite F, Tallahassee, Florida 32308                 phone: (850) 228-6285             email: PMcKee@StructuralSolutions.Biz 

 

January 19, 2017 
 
Camden Whitlock, AIA 
Principal 
Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
206 West Virginia Street | Tallahassee. Florida | 32301 
 
Ref: Collins Building  
  
Subj. Proposal and Letter Agreement for Structural Engineering Services  
 
Mr. Whitlock: 
 
 We appreciate the opportunity to provide this draft proposal for Structural Engineering Services on 
the above referenced Project.  This letter will present our understanding of the project conditions, scope-
of-work, and our proposed professional fees based on the project description and assumptions presented 
herein.   
 
A.  Project Description 

1. The purpose of this project is evaluate the existing plans and existing condition of the Collins 
Building and to prepare a structural assessment report including the potential structural 
ramifications as they pertain to the proposed renovation. 

2. The Collins Building is a 250’x100’ pre-engineered metal building, clad with masonry. 
 
B. SSCE Scope of Structural Services 
 

1. Complete a site investigation to observe the existing components 
2. Review the original construction documents. 
3. Contact the City of Tallahassee Building department to discuss project requirements. 
4. Prepare a report outlining observed structural deficiencies and possible structural concerns 

relative to the proposed renovation  
 

C. Project Conditions, Limitations and Exclusions: 
 

1. Measuring the existing structural components is not included in the scope of this proposal. 
2. Performing calculations on the structural capacity of the existing structural components is not 

included in the scope of this proposal. 
3. Construction documents are not included. 
4. Cost Estimates are not included in this scope of services. 

 
 
D. Proposed Fees for Engineering Services:  Proposed Structural Engineering fees will be a LUMP 

SUM FEE of $1,250.00. 
 
 
 

Attachment E 
11 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 44 of 146



 
   

   
 
 

 
Collins Building Assessment   Page 2 of 2 
Tallahassee, Florida 

 

 

 

   3370 Capital Circle NE, Suite F, Tallahassee, Florida 32308                 phone: (850) 228-6285             email: PMcKee@StructuralSolutions.Biz 

 

AGREEMENT AND NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
By authorized signature below, both parties signify their agreement with the above contractual terms. 
 
  
         
 
 
_____________________________________ ______________________________________ 
Structural Solutions Consulting Engineers, LLC Architect Lewis+Whitlock. 
           
January 19, 2017        ______________________________________ 
Date  Date  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

Attachment E 
12 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 45 of 146



Attachment E 
13 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 46 of 146



Attachment E 
14 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 47 of 146



Attachment E 
15 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 48 of 146



Attachment E 
16 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 49 of 146



Attachment E 
17 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 50 of 146



Attachment E 
18 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 51 of 146



Attachment E 
19 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 52 of 146



Attachment E 
20 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 53 of 146



Attachment E 
21 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 54 of 146



Attachment E 
22 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 55 of 146



Attachment E 
23 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 56 of 146



Attachment E 
24 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 57 of 146



Attachment E 
25 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 58 of 146



Attachment E 
26 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 59 of 146



Attachment E 
27 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 60 of 146



Attachment E 
28 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 61 of 146



Attachment E 
29 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 62 of 146



Attachment E 
30 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 63 of 146



Attachment E 
31 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 64 of 146



Attachment E 
32 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 65 of 146



Attachment E 
33 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 66 of 146



Attachment E 
34 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 67 of 146



Attachment E 
35 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 68 of 146



Attachment E 
36 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 69 of 146



Attachment E 
37 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 70 of 146



Attachment E 
38 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 71 of 146



Attachment E 
39 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 72 of 146



Attachment E 
40 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 73 of 146



Attachment E 
41 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 74 of 146



Attachment E 
42 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 75 of 146



Attachment E 
43 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 76 of 146



Attachment E 
44 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 77 of 146



Attachment E 
45 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 78 of 146



Attachment E 
46 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 79 of 146



Attachment E 
47 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 80 of 146



Attachment E 
48 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 81 of 146



Attachment E 
49 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 82 of 146



Attachment E 
50 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 83 of 146



Attachment E 
51 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 84 of 146



Attachment E 
52 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 85 of 146



Attachment E 
53 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 86 of 146



Attachment E 
54 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 87 of 146



Attachment E 
55 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 88 of 146



Attachment E 
56 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 89 of 146



Attachment E 
57 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 90 of 146



Attachment E 
58 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 91 of 146



Attachment E 
59 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 92 of 146



Attachment E 
60 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 93 of 146



Attachment E 
61 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 94 of 146



Attachment E 
62 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 95 of 146



Attachment E 
63 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 96 of 146



Attachment E 
64 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 97 of 146



Attachment E 
65 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 98 of 146



Attachment E 
66 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 99 of 146



Attachment E 
67 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 100 of 146



Attachment E 
68 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 101 of 146



Attachment E 
69 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 102 of 146



Attachment E 
70 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 103 of 146



Attachment E 
71 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 104 of 146



Attachment E 
72 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 105 of 146



Attachment E 
73 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 106 of 146



Attachment E 
74 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 107 of 146



Attachment E 
75 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 108 of 146



Attachment E 
76 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 109 of 146



Attachment E 
77 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 110 of 146



Attachment E 
78 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 111 of 146



Attachment E 
79 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 112 of 146



Attachment E 
80 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 113 of 146



Attachment E 
81 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 114 of 146



Attachment E 
82 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 115 of 146



Attachment E 
83 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 116 of 146



Attachment E 
84 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 117 of 146



Attachment E 
85 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 118 of 146



Attachment E 
86 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 119 of 146



Attachment E 
87 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 120 of 146



Attachment E 
88 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 121 of 146



Attachment E 
89 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 122 of 146



Attachment E 
90 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 123 of 146



Attachment E 
91 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 124 of 146



Attachment E 
92 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 125 of 146



Attachment E 
93 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 126 of 146



Attachment E 
94 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 127 of 146



Attachment E 
95 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 128 of 146



Attachment E 
96 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 129 of 146



Attachment E 
97 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 130 of 146



 

 

   

 

 

 

Architects | Lewis + Whitlock 
                                                         

   

Architects|Lewis+Whitlock 

 
206 west virginia street | tallahassee florida 32301 | (ph) 850 942 1718 (fax) 850 942 2110 | (web) think3d.net | FLAA0003316 

   
 
October 2, 2014 
 
Mr. John Ward 
Project Manager 
Leon County Facilities Management 
1907 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
 
RE: Architectural & Interior Design Services, Continuing Supply | RFP# BC-06-
26-14-41 
 
Dear Mr. Ward: 
 
Architects: Lewis + Whitlock, PA (AL+W) is honored to be selected to serve Leon 
County in the capacity of Continuing Supply Architectural & Interior Design Services.  
 
As requested, we are providing you with our current billable rate schedule.  Each 
category listed below includes the maximum billable rate for services provided by 
AL+W, including overhead and profit multipliers. 
 

Principal Architect $160 
Project Manager $125 
Senior Architect $125 
Architect $95 
Interior Designer $95 
Graduate Architect $85 
CADD Operator $70 
Clerical $40 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed rates listed above, please call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Architects | Lewis + Whitlock        
     
 
 
 
C. Camden Whitlock, AIA, LEEDAP BD+C 

Principal 

Attachment E 
98 of 98

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 131 of 146



1 | P a g e

2016-2017 Budget Request Form 

NOTE: If your organization submits more than one Budget Request Form, please rank your 
budget requests.  Also, if additional space is needed to respond to a question, please feel free to 
attach additional pages

1. Project Title: _____________________________________ Date:_____________________

2. Project Description (include services to be provided):
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

3. Requester: Name: ______________________________________
Organization:___________________________________________________________________

4. Recipient: Name:_____________________________ Street: _________________________
City: ______________________________Zip Code: ________________
County(s): ________________________
Gov’t Entity  Private Organization (Profit/Not for Profit) 

5. Contact: Name: ______________________________
Phone #: ______________________
E-mail: _______________________

6. What local/statewide interest does this project address?
_____________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________

7. Measurable Outcome Anticipated (Please also include the metrics that will demonstrate the
beneficial return on investment to Florida taxpayers):
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________

8. Amount you are requesting from the State for this project this year:
$___________________

Senator Bill Montford – District 3 
214 Senate Office Building 
404 South Monroe Street 

Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1100 
(850)-487-5003 or (850)-487-5086 FAX 

Attachment F
1 of 8

Entrepreneurial Excellence Program January 10, 2017

The Entrepreneurial Excellence Program (EEP) provides invaluable, intensive and comprehensive guidance and support to early stage startup

businesses and entrepreneurs as they navigate through the vulnerable stages of business development.

Ronald J. Miller, Jr., Executive Director

Leon County Research & Development Authority (LCRDA) / Innovation Park

LCRDA / Innovation Park 1736 W Paul Dirac Dr

Tallahassee 32310

Leon

Ronald J. Miller, Jr.

850-575-0343

RMiller@inn-park.com

EEP serves the Big Bend region: Tallahassee/Leon County, and surrounding area, by providing a unique and proven set of entrepreneurial

support services to individuals looking to start a new business, or to commercialize research, in the region.

Metrics from graduate surveys demonstrate return on investment to date including 130 companies completing the course, 64% still in business today with a combined total of 177

current employees, and 25% still pursuing starting a business. Another 120 companies are expected to be served in the next five years. See attached for more details.

250,000 (5 years /$50,000 p/yr)

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 132 of 146



2 | P a g e

9. Total cost of project this year:
$__________________

10. What is this request being made to fund (check all that apply)?:
Operations Construction

11. What type of match exists for this request (check all that apply)?
Local Private Federal None

11a. Enter all amounts that apply:
Total Cash Amount: $__________________
Total In Kind Amount $_________________

12. Was this project previously funded by the State?
Yes No

12a. If yes, what was the most recent Fiscal Year the project was funded by the State (eg. 2012-
2013)? _______________
Amount: $_______________

13. Is future-year funding likely to be requested?
Yes No

13a. If yes, how much? $_________________ 

13b. What is the purpose for future year funding?:
Recurring Operations Non-Recurring Construction Other ____________________ 

14. Will this be an annual request?
Yes No

15. Was this project included in an Agency Budget Request?
Yes No

15a. If yes, which agency made the request?: 
______________________________________________________________________________

Attachment F
2 of 8

50,000.00

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 133 of 146



3 | P a g e

16. Is there documented need for this project?
Yes No

16a. If yes, what is the documentation (eg: county/local government, Agency Needs Assessment, 
etc.)?
______________________________________________________________________________

17. Was this project request heard before a publicly-noticed meeting of a body of elected
officials (municipal, county, or state)?
Yes No

17a. If yes, what governmental entity heard the request?:
______________________________________________________________________________

18. Is this a water project?
Yes No

18a. Are you requesting funding for a storm water, surface water restoration, or other water
management project?
Yes No

18b. If yes, in which water management district or districts is your project located? 
______________________________________________________________________________

18c. Does the project implement a plan developed pursuant to the Surface Water Improvement 
and Management Act created in Part IV of ch. 373, F.S., other water restoration plans required 
by law, or management plans prepared pursuant to s. 403.067, F.S.?  
Yes No

18d. Is the project under construction?  
Yes No

18e. Does the project protect public health or the environment?
Yes No

Attachment F
3 of 8

The Office of Economic Vitality, the Leon County Commission, and FSU (among many others) have documented
the need for support of entrepreneurial activity in the Tallahassee/Leon County and Big Bend region.

Leon County Research & Development Authority

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 134 of 146



4 | P a g e

19. Are you requesting funding for a wastewater project?
Yes No

19a. If yes, does your project qualify for funding from DEP’s “Small Community Wastewater 
Treatment Grant Program” under s. 403.1838, F.S.?  
Yes No

19b. If yes, have you received or applied for funding?  
Yes No

19c. If yes, provide the DEP Disadvantaged Small Community Grant project number 
______________________________________________________________________________

19d. Have you received or applied for funding for this project from DEP’s State Revolving Fund 
(SRF) program under s. 403.1835, F.S.?  
Yes No

19e. If yes, provide the DEP SRF project: 
______________________________________________________________________________

19f. Is the project under construction?  
Yes No

19g. Have you provided at least a 50% match (that is, one-half the total project cost identified in 
this request)?  
Yes No

19h. If yes, identify the amount and source of the match:  
Amount $_____________________  
Source: ____________________________________________________________________ 
(Matching requirement may be waived for counties with a population of 75,000 or less and 
municipalities with a population of 25,000 or less. Match requirement waiver shall be approved 
on the basis of fiscal hardship or environmental need. The applicant must certify that the cost of 
the match is a fiscal hardship pursuant to s. 218.075, F.S.) 

Attachment F
4 of 8

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 135 of 146



5 | P a g e

20. Are you requesting funding for a drinking water project?
Yes No

If yes, answer the following:  

20a. Have you received or applied for funding for this project from DEP’s Drinking 
Water/Wastewater Treatment Facility Construction State Revolving Fund program/or Small 
Community Wastewater Treatment Grants Program?  
Yes No

20b. If yes, provide the DEP SRF project number: 
_________________________

20c. Is the project under construction?  
Yes No

20d. Have you provided a match? 
Yes No

20e. If yes, please identify the amount and source of the match: 
Amount $_____________________  
Source: ____________________________________________________________________ 

If additional space is needed to respond to a question, please feel free to attach 
additional pages.

Please mail, email or FAX your completed form by January 31, 2017 to: 

SENATOR BILL MONTFORD 
ATTN:  Melissa Durham 

214 Senate Office Building 
404 South Monroe Street 

Tallahassee, Florida  32399-1100 
PHONE: (850) 487-5003 

FAX: (850) 487-5086 
EMAIL: Durham.Melissa@flsenate.gov

Attachment F
5 of 8

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 136 of 146



Attachment F
6 of 8

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 137 of 146



o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Attachment F
7 of 8

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 138 of 146



“For four weeks, I was surrounded by people who sincerely wanted me to succeed, who 
helped prepare me to do that, and who will continue making themselves available to me. I 
received the resources I needed when I needed them.” – Judd Butler, PortStar 

“The course provided a new framework for how I view my business. It’s exciting to have a 
good idea, and the course provided encouragement while at the same time providing 
realistic ways to gauge whether my business plan was moving in the right direction.” – 
Greg Frost, Gulf Coast Tung Oil 

“From beginning to end I gained valuable information that will certainly improve how I 
proceed with my PointCatcher concept. It is especially touching that people as 
accomplished as the teachers, who are surely very busy in their own right, made the time 
to share their valuable insight. By coming in to the class without an extensive background 
in business, the ability to gain so much information in a short amount of time was 
transforming.” — Barbara Wescott, Swellcoin 

“I never realized the wealth of resources available in Tallahassee for ‘budding’ 
entrepreneurs until I took this class. Actually, I was beginning to think I had made a 
mistake in moving to Tallahassee as far as hopes for a successful business venture 
location. Thanks to EEP, I now believe there is a rainbow in the sky.” –Dr. Michelle 
Gamble, Sankofa Healing and Enrichment, Inc. 

Attachment F
8 of 8

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 139 of 146



 

Leon County Research and Development Authority  
Executive Director’s Report to the Board of Governors 

February 2, 2017 
 

Strategic Issues: 
 Jump Start:  

o Hosted EDA representative from Atlanta to tour proposed JumpStart facility and, along with Kristin 
Dozier, provided briefing about Innovation Park 

o Held committee meeting to discuss survey results, shared equipment needs, shared university 
resources, facility space plan concept, and architectural and engineering study requirements 

o Held committee meeting to discuss key partners, and sales and marketing 
o Worked with Mary Jo Spector to obtain a proposal from Lewis + Whitlock to conduct and 

architectural and engineering study 
o Worked with General Counsel to develop contract to piggy‐back on county contracts for 

architectural and engineering needs 
o Worked with staff to summarize and present results of client prospect/stakeholder survey 
o Met with EEP graduate interested in starting a business incubator 

 Office of Economic Vitality: 
o Met with Al Latimer to discuss LCRDA role with OEV committees 
o Met with Ben Pingree to discuss lease prospect 
o With Chair Longman, met with several (6) commissioners/IA members, County Administrator and 

Assistant County Administrator to discuss Innovation Park 

 Entrepreneurial Excellence Program: 
o Worked with Larry Lynch, staff, board members, and House and Senate legislative aides on 

legislative funding request 
o Attended County Community Legislative Dialogue Session (2/1) 

 Tech Grant: Provided support to DPC in planning this year’s program, and beginning implementation 

 Other:  
o Met with Leon County Commissioner Jimbo Jackson to provide detailed Innovation Park orientation 
o Worked with Talcor to review entrance monument signage maintenance/update proposals 

 

Tenant/Prospective Tenant Relations: 
 Worked with FSU to extend one year the ISPA lease in Morgan Building under same terms and conditions 

 Continue to follow up with Morgan prospect—waiting on decision from FAMU president 

 Continue to follow up with National Park Service regarding expansion—budget approval resubmitted due 
to administration changes and length of time to complete; also, NPS completed its basic design document 
requirements required by GSA 

Financial Oversight: 
 Investigated CD rates and monitored timing for reallocation from FLPRIME to SPIA 

 Started Audit RFP—investigated and found County RFP to use as a model 

 Continued to work with Talcor on obtaining HVAC preventative maintenance quotes 

 Filed annual property tax exemption cards 

 Reviewed Simplex Grinnell contract with Talcor 
 

Community Involvement & Economic Development Events: 
 Attended Tallahassee Innovation Partnership Pitch Night 

 Met with community business leader to provide information about Innovation Park  

 Assisted FRPN President with planning annual meeting in Orlando 

 Provided information for Innovation Park update presented to KCCI 
 
 
 

Attachment G 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 140 of 146



Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Executive Director’s Report to the Board of Governors 
February 2, 2017 

General: 
 Conducted 6‐month staff evaluation for Director of Programs & Communications

 Continued to follow up with Counsel regarding Bing Energy bankruptcy and move‐out

 Modified Investment Policy to incorporate and eliminate duplication of Investment Advisory Committee
Charter language

 Trained staff on annual financial disclosure system requirements

 Worked with Property Appraiser’s office to correct tax rolls related to Innovation Park

 Vacation!

Committee/Other Meetings: 
 Jump Start Committee (2)

 Florida Angel Nexus

 Junior Achievement Board of Directors (2)

 AERO meeting

 Monthly OEV meeting

 Bi‐monthly Florida Research Park Network call

Current Projects/Activities 
(Not all inclusive) 

 Entrepreneurial Excellence Program legislative funding follow up

 JumpStart Architectural & Engineering Study

 JumpStart financial model and draft business plan

 Finalize Audit

 Draft Auditor RFP

 Executive, and Audit committee meetings

 TechGrant program support/orientation meeting/review applications

 TechTopics event support

 Trail planning and implementation

 Provide detail orientation for Commissioner Lindley

 Attend EEP Alum/Tech Grant winners event

 Attend EEP opening night

 Attend Intergovernmental Agency Meeting

 Attend Discovery on Parade Event

 Attend Mag Lab open house

 Attend FRPN annual meeting

 Attend AERO meeting

 Attend JA Community Entrepreneurship Committee meeting

 Attend Hancock Bank speaker event

 Morgan Prospect follow up

 Work with GSA on National Park Service Johnson building expansion plans

 Administrative Coordinator’s records retention project support

 Attend my son’s wedding!

Respectfully submitted,  
Ronald J. Miller, Jr., Executive Director 

Attachment G 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 141 of 146



Director of Programs and Communications Report- February 2017 

Discovery on Parade 
 Will have a booth at the event
 Created new display graphics to give our booth an updated look
 Create printed marketing materials to hand out

EEP 
 Class 13 has 7 sign-ups so far
 Larry and I have worked together to create survey for past recipients. The survey was sent first of

January
 Scheduled EEP Alumni Night/TechGrant winner’s circle event for 2/28.  OEV anticipated to

speak and motivational speaker Steve Rogers.  Event taking place in CAPS seminar room

March TechTopics 
 Scheduled for March 8th at CAPS Seminar Room
 In the process of solidifying speakers for event

TechGrant 
 Important dates and deadlines have been announced

o January 9, 2017: Application becomes available- 2017 TechGrant Application Packet
o February 13, 2017: TechGrant Application Orientation, 4 p.m., Knight Administrative

Centre, 1736 W. Paul Dirac Drive
o March 13, 2017: Applications due (Note: only complete applications will be considered.

Application must include: Application Form, Company Profile, signed Applicant
Agreement, Business and Commercialization Plan and, if appropriate, Prior Grant
Recipient Form.)

o April 12, 2017: Finalists announced
o May 17, 2017*: Elevator Pitch Night Event, 5:30 –7:30 p.m.

 Put deposit on Venue- Goodwood Museum Carriage House
 Press Release announcing the program is open was sent out and picked up by Tallahassee

Democrat and TalChamber
 Working with local A/V company to work with for the event
 In process of choosing judges
 In process of starting to ask for sponsorships

Florida Trend Ad 
 Featured in January article on page 113

Website 
 Created a page for Jumpstart
 Re-organized parts of the website

o Created new News section which included news from Park organizations, Innovation
Park Press Releases and a section for the monthly newsletter

o Updated regional data from information on county and OEV websites
o Included link to LCRDA under About
o Changed homepage to include buttons that link to Jumpstart, News, Newsletter and

University Park news
o Updated sliders
o Implemented an initial SEO strategy using current copy on pages

Marketing Materials 
 Drone footage was shot on 1/30 with Gerald Tookes

Tallahassee Science Festival 

Attachment H 
1 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 142 of 146



 We are assisting with the Festival 
 Our role: to work with the MagLab on marketing, maintaining the website and social media 

 
Other 

 Newsletter for December and January were both created, sent out and posted onto our website 
 Social Media calendars were created and implemented 
 Received word back from Knight Foundation.  None of our ideas were selected this time 
 Welcome Sign was created for Knight Administrative Centre 

Attachment H 
2 of 2

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 143 of 146



Page	1 
	 	

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

DECEMBER - JANUARY 
BY: Mark Frost 
NAI TALCOR 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...................................................................................... 1 
KNIGHT ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER ................................................................. 2 
PHIPPS BUILDING .............................................................................................. 2 
COLLINS BUILDING ............................................................................................ 2 
MORGAN BUILDING ........................................................................................... 3 
JOHNSON BUILDING .......................................................................................... 3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As of mid January, 68% of 2015-2016 Common Area Expenses billed to 
tenants in common had been collected. The remaining 32% is primarily 
affiliated with Florida State University and their various parcels. I have been 
in communications with the responsible parties with FSU and clarified a few 
questions they had specific to acreage calculations. I would anticipate 
receipt of payment before the end of January, conformation of approval at a 
minimum.  

The buildings will be ready for an exterior wash in May as budgeted. All 
indications are that separating the water utility to the three individual 
buildings within the Don Fuqua Research Complex is possible; the cost 
however may be prohibitive at the current time. We will continue to explore 
options as it is not an immediate requirement.   

Attachment I 
1 of 3

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 144 of 146



 	
Page	2 

	
	 	

 
KNIGHT ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER 
 
Property Maintenance: 
There were no significant property maintenance issues addressed. 
 
Property Management: 
No significant issues to report for the time period. 
 
Receivables: All tenants within policy.   
  
Occupancy Report: Leasable SF        Vacant           %Vacant 
     2,800  448      16% 
 
 
PHIPPS BUILDING 
 
Property Maintenance:  
There were no major property maintenance items to report for the period. 
 
Property Management:  
There are no property Maintenance issues to report. 
 
Receivables:   Tenant is current 
 
Occupancy Report  Leasable SF   Vacant %Vacant 
                  14,661       0      0 % 
 
 
COLLINS BUILDING 
 
Property Maintenance:  
AC/Heat units reduced to minimal usage without compromising conditions. 
 
Property Management: 
Continue to monitor the move out process of BING equipment. 
 
Receivables:   
    
 
Occupancy Report  Leasable SF   Vacant %Vacant 
                  24,900             22,974   92.2% 
 
 
 
   

Attachment I 
2 of 3

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 145 of 146



 	
Page	3 

	
	 	

 

 
MORGAN BUILDING 
 
Property Maintenance: 
All lighting issues have been identified and resolved.  
 
Property Management: 
There are no significant Property Management issues to report. 
 
Receivables:  All tenants are within policy 
    
 
Occupancy Report: Leasable SF   Vacant           %Vacant 
        22,587          11,587      51% 

 

 
 
JOHNSON BUILDING 
 
Property Maintenance: 
In review of the SEAC Lease a few interior maintenance items were identified that 
called for bi annual or annual services; we are working towards acquiring quotations for 
services. 
 
Property Management:  
There are no property management issues to report. 
 
 
Receivables:   Tenant is current 
 
Occupancy Report  Leasable SF            Vacant %Vacant 
     39,337 13,668     42 % 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment I 
3 of 3

Leon County R&D Authority 
Board of Governors Meeting, February 2, 2017 

Page 146 of 146


	Agenda
	A- Draft BOG meeting minutes  12-1-2016
	B- Treasurer's Report
	C1- Investment Report 11-2016
	C2- Investment Report 12-2016
	C3- Investment Policy Revised 17-02 Draft
	C4- Investment Advisory Committee Charter 0616 Final
	D1- Jump Start Committee Report 12-15-16
	D2-Jump Start Committee Report 01-17-17
	E- L+W Services Agreement Draft
	LCRDA Services Agreement
	Exhibit A-Proposal

	L+W A&E Leon County Contract 4108.pdf
	Contract Routing Form
	Agreement
	Exhibit A: RFP
	Exhibit B: Proposal Response
	Exhibit C: Hourly Rates
	Current Billable Rates


	F- EEP Budget Request Form
	G- Executive Director Report
	H- Director of Programs and Communications Report
	I- Property Manager Report



